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) 
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COMBIN ED COMPLAINT AND - - "l n~ 
CONSENT AG REEMENT 

Complainant, United States Environmental Protection Agency_ Region 8 ("Complainant" 

or '"EPA"), and Respondent, BP America Production Company ("Respondent" or "l3 P"), by their 

undersigned representatives, hereby consent and agree as fo llows: 

AUTHORITY 

I. This proceeding is subject to EPA's "Consolidated Ru les o f Practice Governing the 

Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation or Suspension of I>emlits," 

40 C. F.R. Part 22. This Combined Complaint and Consent Agreement (Consent Agreement) is 

entered into by the parties for the purpose of simultaneously commencing and concluding this 

matter, as authorized by 40 C.F .R. § 22. 13(b) and executed pursuant 10 40 C.F.R. § 22.18(b)(2) 

and (3). 

2. Complainant has jurisdiction over thi s matter pursuanl 10 sections 309(g) of the Clean 

Water Act (Act), as amended by the Oil Pollution Act of 1990, which authorizes the EPA 

Adm in istrator to make findings and to assess civil penalties for violations of sections 30 I, 302. 

306. 307, 318, and 405 of lheAct, 33 U.S.C. §§ 13 11, 1312, 13 16, 1317.131 8, 1328,or1345,or 

any perm it condition or limitation implementing any stich sections of the Act in a pennit issued 

by Ihe Administrator under section 402 o f the Act. 



GENERAL ALLEGATIONS 

3. BP America Production Company is a corporation organized under the laws orthe State of 

Delaware and authorized to do business in the State of Colorado. BP has local offices in Durango 

and Denver, Colorado. 

4. BP is a "person" with in the meaning of sections 311(8)(7) and 502(5) of the Act. 33 

u.S.c. §§ 1321(a)(7) and 1362(5), and therefore subject to the requirements of the Act. 

5. BP is the owner and/o r operato r of the ford Gas Unit F FT~MV 1 A Multi We ll site (site) 

natural gas production operation located on non-Indian owned fee land in La Plata County. 

Colorado. wi thin the exterior boundaries orlhe Southern Ute Indian Reservation. 

6. On or about February 4. 2010, produced water was released fTom the site due to a failed 

gas eliminator valve in a produced water transportation pipe li ne. Over a four day period, an 

estimated 246,666 ga llons (5,873 barrels) of produced water discharged overland approximately 

333 fect south from the site into an unnamed intermittent stream; continued approximately 1.6 

miles to Rock Creek, a perennial stream at the point of conOuenee with the unnamed stream: and 

travelled approximately four miles southeast to the Los Pinos River. an interstate water. 

7. Respondent 's produced water release on rebruary 4. 2010. constitutes a "discharge" as 

defined by section 502(16) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(16). 

8. Produced water is a "pollutant" as defined by sec tion 502(6) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. 

§ 1362(6). 

9. The failed gas eliminator valvc from which the produced water discharged is a "point 

source·· as defined by sec tion 502(14) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(14). 
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10. Rock Creek and the Los Pinos River are "waters oCthe United States" within the meaning 

of 40 C.F.R. § 112.2 and, therefore, "navigable waters" as defined by section 502(7) of the Act. 

33 U.S.C. § 1362(7). 

II. Section 30 1(a) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1311 (a), prohibi ts the discharge of any pollutant by 

any pcrson into a navigable water, unless authori zed by certain provisions of the Act, including 

sections 302, 306, 307, 318, 402, and 404 of the Act, 33 U.S.c. §§ 1312, 1316, 1317, 1328, 1342 

and 1344. 

12. BP notified EPA on February 12,2010. of the possible violation of sect ion 301 of 

the Act under EPA's po li cy en titled " Incentives for Self- Policing: Discovery. Disclosure, 

Correction and Prevention of Vi olati OilS" (April 11. 2000) (Audit Policy). BP provided EPA with 

a report dated May 26. 20 I 0, and additional information on November 4. 20 II, documenting the 

release and Respondent's voluntary disc losure. 

13. The Aud it Policy provides , in part , that gravi ty- based penalties will be reduced by 75% for 

a vio lation that is volun tari ly discovered, promptly di sc losed and expeditiously corrected where 

the regulated entity meets all but the first of nine conditions, wi th the fi rst condition being the 

discovery oCthe violation through an environmental audit or due diligence. 

14. EPA detemlined ancr reviewing the incident and BP's response that BP satisfied all but 

the first condition of the Audit Po licy. 

CONSENT AG R EEMENT 

15. BP admits the allegmions contained in th is Consent Agreement. 

16. BP waives its right to a hearing before any tribunal, to contest any issue of law or fact set 

forth in thi s Consent Agreemen t. 
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17. This Consent Agreement, upon incorporation into a final order, applies to and is binding 

upon EPA, and lIpon BP, its successors and assigns. Any change in ownership or corporate status 

by BP. including, but not limited to, any transfer of assets or real or personal property, shall not 

alte r BP's responsibilities under this agreement. This Consent Agreement contains all tenns of tile 

settlement agreed to by the parties. 

18. Section 309(g)(2)(A) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(2)(A), authorizes the assessment of 

a Class I civil pcnalty of up to $16,000 per violation of section 301 of1he Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1311 , 

up 10 a maximum or$37,500 for vio lat ions occurring after January 12,2009. These amounts 

ha"c been adjusted for inflation by 40 C.F.R. Part 19. For purposes of determining the amount of 

any civ il penalty to be assessed, section 309(g)(3) of the Act, 33 U.S.c. § 1319(g)(3). requires 

EPA to take into account the following factors: the nature, circumstances, extent and gravity of' 

the vio lation(s) and, with respect to the vio lator, ability to pay. any prior history of such 

violations, degree of cu lpability, economic benefit or savings gained from the violation, and such 

other fhctors that justice may require. 

19. Based on the facto rs listed in paragraph 18. and having determined that the nlcts satisfy all 

but the first condition set forth in the Audit Policy warranting a 75% gravity reduction. EPA 

proposed a civil penalty of Seven Thousand Dollars ($7,000.00) to senle this action. 

20. BP consents, for the purpose of settlement , to the issuance of a final order in this matter 

and agrees to pay the civil penalty cited in paragraph 19 above as follows: 

a. Payment is due within th irty (30) ca lendar days from the date written on the Final 
Order, issued by the Regional Judicial OfTicer that adopts this Consent Agreement. 
Irthe due date falls on a weekend or lega l federal holiday. then the due date 
becomes the next business day. The date the payment is made is considered \0 be 
the date processed by Mellon Bank described below. Payments received by 11:00 
AM EST arc processed on the same day. those received after 11 :00 AM are 

In the Matter of 13P America Production Company 
Combined Complaint and Consent Agreement - 4 



processed on the next business day. 

b. The payment shall be made by remitting a cashier's or cert ified check. referencing 
the name and docket number of this case, for thi s amount, payable to 
" Environmental Protection Agency ," to: 

US checks b)' regular 
US postal service mail : 

Federal Express, Airborne, 
or other cOllImerci;11 carrier: 

Wire transfe rs: 

On Line Payment: 

US EPA Fines and Penalties 
Cincinnati Finance Center 
1'0 Box 979077 
SI. Louis, MO 63197-9000 

U,S, Bank 
1005 Convention Plaza 
Mail Stat ion SL-MO-C2GL 
SI. Louis, MO 63 101 

Federal Reserve Bank of ew York 
ABA = 02 1030004 
Account = 680 1 0727 
SWIFT address = fRNYUS33 
33 Liberty Street 
New York NY 10045 
Field Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message 
should read "D 68010727 Environmental 
Protection Agency" 

WWW,PAY,GOY 
Enter sfo 1.1 in the search field 

Open form and complete required fields. 

Copies of the check or wire transfer shall be simultuneollsly sent to: 

Natasha Davis 
U,S, EPA Region 8 (8EN F-W) 
1595 Wynkoop Street 
Denver, CO 80202- 11 29 

Tina Artemis, Regionall-learing Clerk 
U,S, EPA Region 8 (8 RC) 
1595 Wynkoop Street 
Denver, CO 80202- 1129 
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c. In the event payment is not received by the specified due date, interest accrues 
from the date of the Final Order, not the payment due date, at a rate established by 
the Secretary of the Treasury pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717, and will continue to 
accrue until the payment is received in full ( i.e. , on the 151 late day, 30 days of 
interest accrues). 

d. In addition to the accrual of interest specified in (c) above, a handling charge of 
fifteen dollars ($15.00) shall be assessed on the 31" day from the date of the Final 
Order, and each subsequent 30-day period that the penalty, or any portion thereof, 
remains unpaid. In addition, a six percent (6%) per annum penalty shall be 
assessed on any unpaid principal amount if the penalty payment is not received 
within ninety (90) days of the due date (i.e., the 121 51 day from the date the final 
order is signed). Payments are fi rst applied to outstanding handling charges, 6% 
penulty interest. and late interest. The remainder is then applied to the outstanding 
principal amount. 

e. Respondent agrees that the penallY shall never be claimed as a federal or other tax 
deduction or credit. 

21. For settlement purposes only, in add ition to paying the civil penalty discllssed above. BP 

agrees to hire an engineering consultant to conduct a macroi llvertebrate study for the Rock Creek 

watcrshed. The consultant will collect three samples at three sample locations to create a baseline 

study for the macroinvertebrate community. The three samples from each sample site will then 

be combined in to one composite sample for analysis. During the benthic organism samplc 

collection, the consu ltant will also collect basic field parameters of the stream at each sample sitc 

including: temperature, conductivity and pH. Several metrics describing the characteristics of the 

benthic macroinvcrtebrate community will be calculated for each sampling site. The consultant 

will draft a report to summarize the results o f the macroinvertebrate analysis and the results will 

be compared and con trasted to the 20 I 0 sample results. The report will also include the calculuted 

mctrics and maps showing the sample locations. A copy of the draft report will be provided to the 

Southern Ute Indian Tribe (SUIT) Water Quality Program to obtain and incorporate additiona l. 
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relevant macro invertebrate sampling data collected by the SUIT. BP will provide EPA and the 

SUIT Water Quality Program copics of a fi nal report highlighting the SUIT data and detailing the 

results and findings within sixty days of receiving the drat) macroinvertebrate report from the 

SU IT. 

I'UBLIC NOT ICE 

22. As requ ired by seclion 309(g)(4)(A) oflhe ACI, 33 U.S.c. § 1319(g)(4)(A), prior 10 

assessing a civil penalty, EPA will provide the public notice of and reasonable opportunity to 

comment on the proposed issuance of such order and , if a hearing is held, 10 be heard and present 

evidence. 

GENERAL PROVI SIONS 

23 . Paymen t of the penalty in this manner does not relieve BP of its obligation to comply with 

the requirements orthe Act. Payment or the penalty in this manner shull constitute consen t by BP 

to the usseSSlllen t of the proposed penalty and a waive r of BP's right to a hearing on thi s mailer. 

24 . Fa ilure by BP to comply wi th any of the terms of thi s Consen t Agreement shall const itute 

a breach of the Consent Agreement and may result in referral o f the matter to the Department of 

Justice for enforcement o f this agreement and fo r such other relie r as may be appropriate. 

25. othing in this Consent Agreement shall be const rued as a wa iver by the EPA or any 

other federal entity of its authority to seek costs or any appropriate penalty associated with any 

co llect ion action inst ituted as a result of BP's failure to pcrfonn pursuant to the tenns of this 

Consent Agreement 

26. The undersigned representative of BP certifies that he is fully authorized to enter into the 

terms and condit ions of this Consent Agreement and to bind BP to the terms and conditions of 
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this Consent Agreement. 

27. The parties agree to submit this Consent Agreement to the Regional Judicial Officer, with 

a request that it be incorporated into a fi nal order. 

28 . Each party shall bem its own costs and attorney fees in connection with th is matter. 

29. This Consent Agreement, upon incorporation into a final order by the Regional Judicial 

Officer and full satisfaction by the panics, shall be a complete and full civil settlement of the 

specific violations alleged in thi s Consent Agreement. 

Date: 1t17 tS;LoI 2.. 

Date: __ ~/-!_t/-I_L-__ 

Ill' AMERI CA I' RO DUCTION COMPANY 
Respondent. 

Steph n Collins, Interim Operations Center Manager 

UNITED ST AT ES ENVIRONMENTAL 
I' ROT ECTION AGENCY, REG ION 8 
Complainant. 

att hew Cohn, Di rector 
Lega l Enforcement Program 
Ofiice of Enforcement, Compliance 

and Environmental Justice 

rtur Palomares, Director 
WN r Technical Enforcement Program 
Office of Enforcemcnt, Compliancc 

and Environmental Justice 
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Date: S (1 ~~/:2...- < 
Amy SW' son, Enforcement Allorncy 
U.S. EPA. Region 8 
1595 Wynkoop Street (8ENF-L) 
Denver, CO 80202-1149 
Colorado Any. Reg. No. 26488 
Telephone: 303/312-6906 
Facsimile: 303/312-6953 
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